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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning. My

          3  name is Leroy Comrie. I chair the Committee on

          4  Rules, Privileges and Elections. Joining me this

          5  morning is the Deputy Majority Leader Bill Perkins,

          6  the Chair of the Finance Committee David Weprin, the

          7  excellent chair of the Finance Committee who just

          8  led us through a difficult budget. To my left is the

          9  Majority Leader, Joel Rivera; Tony Avella, the

         10  Chairman of the Franchises and Zoning Committee; and

         11  Councilwoman Yvette Clarke, who is the Chair of our

         12  Fire and Criminal Justice Services. And joining us

         13  is our Councilwoman Madeline Provenzano, who is the

         14  Chairperson of the Housing and Buildings Committee.

         15                 Today we have before us three

         16  candidates for our advice and consent review, two

         17  for the City Planning Commission, and one for the

         18  Board of Standards and Appeals. They are Mr. Joel

         19  Miele, Sr., for the Board of Standards and Appeals,

         20  a Mayoral appointee whose term would expire on

         21  September 1st, 2003; Richard Eaddy, for the City

         22  Planning Commission, a Mayoral appointee whose term

         23  would expire on June 30th, 2005; and Karen Phillips,

         24  the City Planning Commission, an appointee of the

         25  Public Advocate whose term would expire on June
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          2  30th, 2005.

          3                 The City Planning Commission, as you

          4  know, has 13 members, seven of which are appointed

          5  by the Mayor, one by the Public Advocate, and one by

          6  each of the Borough Presidents.

          7                 The Planning Commission is

          8  responsible for long-range planning to ensure

          9  orderly growth in future development, to assist in

         10  developing the ten-year capital plan, they prepare

         11  and modify the zoning resolutions, and they do many

         12  other critical functions dealing with zoning and

         13  Land Use in the City.

         14                 The Board of Standards and Appeals

         15  have five members, all appointed by the Mayor for

         16  six-year terms. The Board hears appeals from certain

         17  actions taken by Commissioners of the Department of

         18  Building, Fire, Transportation and Business

         19  Services. They also have the power to vary

         20  application of zoning resolutions and to issue

         21  special permits for individual applicants.

         22                 We've been joined by Councilwoman

         23  Helen Sears, and I thought I saw Councilman Lou

         24  Fidler.  Good morning, Lou.

         25                 This morning I'd like to welcome the
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          2  candidates here and we'd like to start with Mr. Joel

          3  Miele first.

          4                 Good morning. Where is the table?

          5  Where are we testifying from? Why don't you sit

          6  there. I'm looking up and realizing the table is

          7  missing. That's Eva Moskowitz' chair.

          8                 MR. MIELE: Can you hear me?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes.

         10                 MR. MIELE: Yes, it's working. Good

         11  morning.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Mr. Miele, as you

         13  don't know, the new Council has been swearing in all

         14  witnesses prior to their testimony. It's a new

         15  policy and procedure. So, hold on one minute.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Prior to your

         17  testimony, would you please raise your right hand?

         18                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

         19  the testimony you're about to give us is the truth,

         20  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         21                 MR. MIELE: I do.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         23  your name and affiliation for the record.

         24                 MR. MIELE: My name is Joel A. Miele,

         25  Sr., Professional Engineer, and I'm an employee of
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          2  the Department of Environmental Protection at this

          3  point.

          4                 Good morning, Chairman Comrie and

          5  members of the Committee. My name is, as you've

          6  already heard, Joel A. Miele, Sr., Professional

          7  Engineer and Planner, and I'm here to ask for your

          8  confirmation of my nomination by Mayor Bloomberg, as

          9  the Commissioner on the Board of Standards and

         10  Appeals.

         11                 My background includes service at all

         12  three levels of government, as I have served at the

         13  local New York City level as a member and Community

         14  Board 10 in Queens, member of the City Planning

         15  Commission, Commissioner of the Department of

         16  Buildings and Commissioner of the Department of

         17  Environmental Protection, over a period of some

         18  three decades since 1972, having served as Buildings

         19  Commissioner from 1994 to August of 1996, and as

         20  Commissioner of DEP from August '96 until March of

         21  this year.

         22                 On the state level I served through

         23  the ranks to the grade of Rear Admiral as a member

         24  of the New York State Naval Militia, continue to

         25  serve after over 25 years as the President of the
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          2  Board of Visitors of Creedmoor State Hospital, and

          3  since 1997, on the State Board for Professional

          4  Engineers and Land Surveyors.

          5                 In the first position I served at the

          6  pleasure of the Governor, at the second position I

          7  still serve as a gubernatorial appointee subject to

          8  senatorial confirmation, and in the last position

          9  I'm still serving as an appointee of the Regents of

         10  the State Education Department.

         11                 On the federal level I served in the

         12  Civil Engineer Corps of the United States Navy on

         13  active and inactive duty over a period of 32 years,

         14  retiring in 1988, with pay, at the rank of Captain.

         15                 Finally, after graduating from the

         16  Polytechnic University in 1955 as a Civil Engineer,

         17  I was in private practice as an engineer in New York

         18  City through 1990, some 35 years less my active

         19  military service, involved in filing applications

         20  for private clients and for City, with the various

         21  City agencies involved in construction and

         22  development, which include buildings, City Planning

         23  Commission and the Board of Standards and Appeals.

         24                 I also found time over the years to

         25  serve as an officer on many boards, including the
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          2  Peninsula Hospital Center in Queens, the Peninsula

          3  Extended Care and Rehabilitation, the American

          4  Parkinson Disease Association, the Queens Borough

          5  Public Library Board, the New York State Society of

          6  Professional Engineers, which I served as President,

          7  and the Queens County Overall Economic Development

          8  Corporation, which I was also president of for some

          9  four years.

         10                 During my tenure as Buildings

         11  Commissioner, many innovations were undertaken

         12  including passage of the seismic or earthquake

         13  provisions of the Building Code, computerization of

         14  application filing and records, professional

         15  certification of applications to reduce the time and

         16  cost of filing with the agency and modernization of

         17  the agency's notices and directives to eliminate

         18  conflicting decisions and duplication which existed.

         19                 During my six years at the DEP, I was

         20  able to effect the Memorandum of Agreement for the

         21  watershed land which obviated the need to build a $6

         22  billion filtration plant to treat Catskill and

         23  Delaware watershed water, 90 percent of the City's

         24  supply, while at the same time upgrading all waste

         25  water treatment plants in all three watersheds,
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          2  putting appropriate regulations in place for new

          3  development in the watersheds, buying over 40,000

          4  acres of environmentally sensitive land in the

          5  watersheds, which will remain forever wild, and

          6  increasing the size of the DEP police force which

          7  protects our drinking water from 24 officers when I

          8  arrived to 124 when I left.

          9                 I am a life-long resident of New York

         10  City and have an abiding interest in its economic

         11  well-being and quality of life. Should you confirm

         12  me, I will continue to do my very best to help make

         13  New York City an even better place to live, work and

         14  have fun.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Miele.

         18                 We have a letter from Riverkeeper to

         19  be submitted, written testimony, that I'm sure

         20  you're aware of.

         21                 MR. MIELE: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And it will be

         23  submitted to the Sergeant-At-Arms and entered into

         24  the record.

         25                 At this time I'll open up to any
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          2  questions from the members before I ask any

          3  questions.

          4                 I do want to preface it, that I have

          5  had a long relationship working with Mr. Miele when

          6  he was Commissioner of DEP, and at the Buildings

          7  Department during my past tenure, working as an aid

          8  for Council Member Archie Spigner, and I've always

          9  found him to be a forthright determined individual

         10  that had a keen focus and a good sense of what his

         11  mission for the agencies that he worked with at the

         12  time, and we had a good working relationship, even

         13  though we didn't always agree, we were always

         14  agreeable, and I appreciated that.

         15                 So, I'll open it up for members'

         16  questions at this time.

         17                 Councilman Avella is first. And we've

         18  also been joined by -- I'm sorry, didn't I see

         19  Council Member Quinn? Good morning.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chairman.

         22                 Good morning, Commissioner.

         23                 MR. MIELE: Good morning.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Can I feel

         25  free to continue the relationship that we've had
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          2  over, I guess the past 20 years and call you Joel?

          3                 MR. MIELE: I would be hurt if you

          4  didn't.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I have a

          6  couple of questions. First of all, in response to

          7  the questions that we submitted, the question was:

          8  Do you think the City's zoning resolution should be

          9  reviewed? If yes, please describe the specific

         10  changes that you'd like to see and the reasons for

         11  same.

         12                 And your response was: In the matter

         13  of community facility uses in residential districts

         14  certainly concerns me, for one."

         15                 I am probably the most vocal critic

         16  at this point in the City Council as Chair of Zoning

         17  and Franchises, about the need to change the

         18  community facilities law of the zoning code, so I'd

         19  like you to expand on that and exactly what do you

         20  see as the problem.

         21                 MR. MIELE: Well, I'll give you two

         22  for instances. The community facilities provisions

         23  of the zoning resolution permit not-for-profit

         24  entities to establish themselves in residential

         25  areas, and because there are no real parameters
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          2  established for that, one could start, if you would,

          3  a tennis facility not-for-profit in a residential

          4  zone, and then on a Friday night and Saturday night

          5  hold a dance that might attract 350 people.

          6                 To me that has a major impact on the

          7  residential community around it, and I don't think

          8  that the community facility provisions make enough

          9  provision for that.

         10                 Second example is in medical offices.

         11  The medical provisions in the community facility use

         12  were originally put in for Dr. Welby, the small town

         13  country physician, who if you knocked on his door at

         14  2:00 in the morning with a sick child was there in

         15  the community and the idea of having him in the

         16  community was the fact that he would be there when

         17  he was needed.

         18                 You're not finding that developed in

         19  residential areas anymore, you're finding large

         20  medical facilities being developed because of the

         21  way the wording in the community facilities, and as

         22  a consequence, the purpose of having medical

         23  facilities in the residential community has been

         24  twisted to the point where they're now a major

         25  negative in residential communities, rather than the
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          2  positive they were when the original zoning

          3  resolution was enacted.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: What is your

          5  feeling about religious institutions under community

          6  facilities?

          7                 MR. MIELE: I think, again, I guess

          8  the general answer to that relates to the first two

          9  in the fact that there isn't enough specificity in

         10  the community facility section, and I think you

         11  could put specificity in there.

         12                 There is a balance between the

         13  communities positive aspects and the negative impact

         14  of what occurs in the community and it has to be

         15  determined, I think, in the law itself, otherwise

         16  there's too much left to chance.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: One of the

         18  other things that I've been suggesting is an appeal

         19  process to the Board of Standards and Appeals. Now,

         20  there are a lot of neighborhoods throughout the City

         21  in New York that feel the Board is not responsive to

         22  the needs of the community when reviewing

         23  applications; what would be your response to that

         24  issue?

         25                 MR. MIELE: I think the Board has
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          2  been, and will continue to be responsive. I view the

          3  Board as the safety valve in the City. The City

          4  Planning Commission involves itself with good City

          5  planning as it should, the Board of Standards and

          6  Appeals is there to take exceptions to good City

          7  Planning, which are necessary because of hardships

          8  or specific needs or specific reasons, and I think

          9  the Board could continue to function in a role like

         10  that being able to balance the needs. You're never

         11  going to satisfy everybody, and one of the things

         12  that I try to propound to my fellow chairs when I

         13  was the Chairman of a community board, was the fact

         14  that if your community board has a problem with a

         15  project, understand what the parameters that both

         16  City Planning are bound by in the law and the Board

         17  of Standards and Appeals are bound by in the law,

         18  and recognize you have to address those issues. You

         19  can't just say I don't want it in my community.

         20  That's not something either one of those bodies can

         21  respond to.

         22                 So, the more educated the boards are

         23  and the more educated the communities are, the

         24  better the response will be. But I think clearly the

         25  record of the Board on appeal is an excellent one,
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          2  which kind of indicates they've pretty much done

          3  what, you know, the law intended them to do.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: My last

          5  question is, the Chair mentioned about the letter

          6  that we received from Riverkeeper, and without going

          7  into detail it does mention some rather strong

          8  comment about your appointment, and I'd like to give

          9  you the opportunity to respond to some of the things

         10  in the letter, I'd like to know your comments about

         11  what they said.

         12                 MR. MIELE: Well, I think I've dealt

         13  with the Riverkeeper and its fearless leader over a

         14  period of six years at the Department of

         15  Environmental Protection. In many instances the

         16  Riverkeeper makes a lot of sense, and in many

         17  instances the Riverkeeper is playing politics, and

         18  in many instances I really don't think they

         19  understand what they're doing and what they're

         20  talking about.

         21                 The issues that were brought up, and

         22  I'd rather not get into the real specifics of them

         23  unless you insist, but the bottom line is these have

         24  been gone over, these are past history. This body in

         25  a prior addition heard all of this and blew it off.
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          2                 There's no substance to it. Very

          3  clearly I felt a strong need for advocacy for the

          4  environment. I believe I have done that. I think my

          5  record at DEP proves that, and to raise issues which

          6  really are not germane to what we're dealing with

          7  here that are old issues means that he hasn't got

          8  anything of real import and sense to say to you, and

          9  I think it's petty.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you,

         11  Joel. I just want to make a final comment that in

         12  all the years that I've known you, you've been an

         13  excellent public service, working for the City in

         14  the community, also in your previous role as Chair

         15  of Board 10. It's my pleasure to support your

         16  appointment.

         17                 MR. MIELE: Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

         21  Councilman Avella.

         22                 Councilman Perkins.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I think

         24  Councilman Avella sort of touched on this concern

         25  that I had with regard to the Riverkeeper's
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          2  accusations of, you know, different types of what

          3  are very serious issues.

          4                 I guess you don't want to go into it

          5  in detail and you gave the best answer to it that

          6  you could, but it is some pretty heavy --

          7                 MR. MIELE: I could give you,

          8  Councilman, a couple of sentences, if you would, on

          9  each one of these, if you'd like.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, that

         11  will help.

         12                 MR. MIELE: The first one, I, as the

         13  agency head, pled the agency guilty to a single

         14  felony and a single misdemeanor after a two plus

         15  year investigation by the FBI, the EPA, of the

         16  entire agency. They had over 150 people involved,

         17  they spent over two and a half years, and the two

         18  issues that were finally ground down were one

         19  violation of the Clean Water Act, which was that

         20  there was a possibility that a minute quantity of a

         21  material that is prohibited to be placed into

         22  drinking water, could have possibly, there's no

         23  proof it ever did, got into the drinking water at a

         24  level that had no impact on the drinking water

         25  whatsoever on one occasion that was improperly
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          2  handled by an employee who was about ten levels down

          3  from the Commissioner's office. So, so much of, if

          4  you will, environmental crimes.

          5                 The second issue was a false

          6  statement that he raises about the Delaware

          7  Aqueduct. When I came into the job back in '96, it

          8  was my decision that we would repair the Delaware

          9  Aqueduct.

         10                 The Delaware Aqueduct has been

         11  leaking, and I've testified before this Council on

         12  numerous occasions about it, since 1950 something

         13  when it was completed and put into operation.

         14                 There are records that show that we

         15  knew it was leaking. At that point in time, it was

         16  not considered to be important enough to do anything

         17  about. I had a new study done in '96 when I came

         18  aboard by an outside consultant who said to me,

         19  there's no danger of the tunnel collapsing or your

         20  being unable to take water through the Delaware

         21  tunnel; however, it's a leak of significance and

         22  it's inappropriate for the environmental agency to

         23  permit it to continue, and I directed that studies

         24  be made to effect the repair of the two leaks that

         25  we know of in that tunnel, and those are being
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          2  brought to fruition now.

          3                 Now, I appeared before this body, but

          4  it was the environmental committee of this body,

          5  back in 2000, I think, and at that time I said that

          6  we had a contract, a signed contract for an

          7  underwater autonomous vessel, and I misspoke, and I

          8  so corrected myself at the next hearing before the

          9  Council, because Mr. Kennedy suggested to the

         10  Manhattan District Attorney I should be charged with

         11  perjury for stating we had a signed contract when in

         12  fact we didn't have a signed contract.

         13                 Now, what we had at the time was an

         14  agreement with the contractor on conditions, price

         15  and wording, and both the contractor's attorneys and

         16  our attorneys at Corp Counsel's office were

         17  reviewing the verbiage in the contracts before they

         18  would permit us to sign them.

         19                 Now, my people told me we have a

         20  contract. Now, I don't know what that means to you,

         21  but to me it means we have a signed contract, and I

         22  added the word "signed" inadvertently, that so much

         23  about the Delaware Aqueduct. And by the way, I'm

         24  very pleased to see that that is on target and on

         25  time.
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          2                 Steep slopes development. The agency

          3  that was sued was not DEP, it was the State agency

          4  that governs development. Now, we're not the sole

          5  regulator of development in the watershed. There are

          6  State agencies, the Health Department and DEC that

          7  have responsibilities there. DEC permitted

          8  Westchester and Putnam Counties to modify their

          9  regulations by a rule-making that permitted them to

         10  put individual septic tanks and seepage pit systems,

         11  private sanitary systems for individual homes and

         12  offices on slope land that had a slope of 15

         13  degrees.

         14                 The State code, the State law says it

         15  cannot exceed ten degrees. They made a rule that

         16  said you can do it on 15 degree property, as long as

         17  you alter the slope down to ten degrees. We said if

         18  you accept that, we'll accept that.

         19                 Kennedy challenged the State agency

         20  through the Riverkeeper in court on the basis not

         21  that there was an environmental problem with it, not

         22  on the basis that it was not engineeringly sound,

         23  but on the basis that they had failed to follow

         24  their own rule-making process, and the State agreed

         25  with them that they had faults in the process and
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          2  agreed to rescind the rule.

          3                 I am told about a year ago, and they

          4  pulled the rule back, and we said if you pull the

          5  rule back we will comply with the rule. This is not

          6  a rule that we made.

          7                 I am told that Westchester County has

          8  applied for a rule-making that would bring it back

          9  up to 15 degrees, and the agency is following that

         10  as we speak. But this is not something that we

         11  changed, it's something he basically sued us for, it

         12  was basically the State agencies.

         13                 And in wetlands protection, I think

         14  very clearly, I've told you here, we've increased

         15  the number of police by some five times. I put in a

         16  request for 60 additional officers before I left

         17  this Commissioner at the agency. My understanding is

         18  that is going to happen. They will be entering the

         19  Police Academy within months, so the agency will

         20  have up to 180 police, and I'm very comfortable with

         21  what we've done. Part of what we've done has

         22  eliminated a major source of pollution from the

         23  wastewater treatment plants that spill water into

         24  our drinking water, and we've increased the

         25  percentage of pollutant removal in those by the
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          2  memorandum of agreement from some 85 percent removal

          3  of pollutants, to about 98 to 99 percent removal

          4  under new processes, and that's just about due for

          5  completion as we speak here today.

          6                 So, again, all of these issues are

          7  old issues, all of these issues have been as they

          8  have been presented to you, bent beyond all belief,

          9  and I hope that answers your questions.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We've been joined

         13  by Minority Leader James Oddo, Jimmy Oddo, and

         14  Council Member Melinda Katz, and Council Member

         15  Helen Sears, and any other questions from members of

         16  the Committee?

         17                 Council Member Sears has a question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         19  much, Mr. Chair. I just wish to say that I've known

         20  Mr. Miele for many years, and had to work with him

         21  in the Department of Buildings and in the DEP, and

         22  he has shown a very extraordinary commitment to the

         23  City and to the communities.

         24                 I thank Council Member Perkins and

         25  Councilman Avella for raising the issues that they
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          2  did. I think they would be a cloud if they were not

          3  raised, and it gave Mr. Miele an opportunity to

          4  expand on them as well as he could.

          5                 I just have to express what

          6  Councilman Avella stressed about the communities to

          7  you and the fact that there are such things

          8  happening in the communities that the Standards and

          9  Appeals is a very, very key agency in our

         10  communities.

         11                 I know you're sensitive to that, and

         12  I also know you need to operate within the confines

         13  of what agencies missions are. So, I'm just asking

         14  you, as so have the other Council members, that we

         15  are greatly affected by standards and appeals,

         16  greatly affected by them, and at times when this

         17  agency has not been receptive at all to what has

         18  been going on in the communities.

         19                 They've actually ignored -- it's been

         20  great frustration of anyone involved in the

         21  communities, and, so, we're asking you, with respect

         22  to your sensitivity, I think you have to go that

         23  extra yard when it comes to this agency and the

         24  things that happen in the communities.

         25                 MR. MIELE: Well, you know me, and
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          2  you've said that, and you know that I believe that

          3  if you're going to do something you have to do it

          4  appropriately and you have to do it fully and I do

          5  it with a great deal of fervor. I get a great deal

          6  of enjoyment out of the kind of work that you're

          7  offering me here, and I look forward to I think

          8  satisfying your need, the community need, and if

          9  there's any way I can individually help the

         10  communities understand better the agency's role and

         11  its constraints, I'd be very pleased to do that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         15                 I also want to echo, and go back to

         16  concentrating on BSA, the comments by Council Member

         17  Avella and Councilwoman Helen Sears regarding the

         18  public access and the ability to really find out

         19  about issues going before BSA, and having the public

         20  having a more than equal opportunity to understand

         21  what the issues are and the ability to articulate

         22  them to BSA, because a lot of times when these

         23  special permits are considered, the entire community

         24  is not considered as part of the plan with the

         25  special permit. While we understand that this is a
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          2  City of a lot of nuances, and a lot of -- every

          3  block has a different issue, every block has a

          4  different history, there is a community to be

          5  involved, and I know that from my experience with

          6  BSA it hasn't been positive, and I would hope that

          7  by the Administration bringing you in, we could

          8  change that.

          9                 Part of what we I think need to do is

         10  to have the BSA do more with the community boards to

         11  give them a better instruction and background on

         12  their role as far as zoning and special permit

         13  process. I think that at some point the BSA has to

         14  do more to allow for public testimony and the public

         15  insertion into the process, especially in our

         16  communities where we're in danger of losing

         17  residential communities to overdevelopment, or

         18  especially as in what happened in Flushing and other

         19  communities where residential communities became

         20  overdeveloped to the point where they allowed large

         21  institutions to intrude, we really need BSA to be

         22  more proactive with outreach and community

         23  information.

         24                 So, again, I know your record and I

         25  know that you have an ability to reach out and be in
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          2  the public and endure long back and forth with the

          3  public, so I would hope that you can bring that

          4  spirit to BSA so that they can in fact be more open

          5  and more diverse in their opinions, when they look

          6  at the totality of a community vis-a-vis a specific

          7  project.

          8                 At this time any other? Okay, good

          9  morning. The Chairman of BSA is sitting in the back,

         10  Commissioner Chin, and since we're all the way back

         11  there, I want to mention that our former Bronx

         12  Borough President Fernando Ferrer is here, and did

         13  you want to speak? Because you didn't fill out

         14  anything and I just wanted to ask.

         15                 COMMISSIONER CHIN: No.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, I just

         17  wanted to make sure that you were given an

         18  opportunity.

         19                 At this time we're done with

         20  questions on Mr. Miele. Thank you for coming, and

         21  thank you for wanting to continue to serve the City.

         22                 MR. MIELE: Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: The next person

         24  is Mr. Richard Eaddy, and he is coming before us on

         25  appointment to the City Planning Commission.
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          2                 Good morning. Can you raise your

          3  right hand and be sworn in.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

          5  swear or affirm that the testimony you're about to

          6  give us is the truth, the whole truth and nothing

          7  but the truth?

          8                 MR. EADDY: I do.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         10  your name and affiliation for the record.

         11                 MR. EADDY: Richard Eaddy, candidate

         12  for planning Commissioner.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning, Mr.

         14  Eaddy.

         15                 MR. EADDY: Good morning.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

         17  opening statement?

         18                 MR. EADDY: Yes. Chairman Comrie,

         19  Committee members, I would like to thank you for

         20  this opportunity to come before you this morning.

         21                 In opening I'd just like to say that

         22  Land Use decisions are important factors in

         23  determining the health and make-up of our

         24  neighborhoods, and therefore our City. Working with

         25  Chairperson Burden and my colleagues on the

                                                            28

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  Commission, I hope to utilize my years of experience

          3  working with various communities throughout the City

          4  to provide balanced decisions that will promote

          5  economic development and housing and maintain the

          6  character of our communities.

          7                 I look forward to working with the

          8  people of New York to make this happen.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay,.

         11                 Good morning. Welcome, Mr. Eaddy.

         12                 MR. EADDY: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I would just want

         14  to, if you could expound on, I'm happy to see you

         15  here for a couple of reasons, and I would also want

         16  to let you know that during the process a lot of

         17  people came to me to tell me how wonderful you were

         18  and how much of a great public servant that they

         19  felt you were and how you would be a great addition

         20  to the City Planning Commission. I've never had a

         21  chance to meet you in the past and I look forward to

         22  talking with you in the future.

         23                 And I hope that as I discussed just

         24  now with Mr. Miele that you utilize your opportunity

         25  to be on City Planning to be a real voice for the
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          2  entire communities that compromise New York City.

          3  City Planning is a critical component, and we must

          4  make sure that it reflects the nature of the entire

          5  community when you do City Planning.

          6                 One of the things that we really need

          7  to do is to strengthen the power of community boards

          8  and have them be more of a direct part of the City

          9  Planning process to do their 198 plans and to do

         10  their pre-planning so that we can protect the

         11  quality and the integrity and the beauty and the

         12  uniqueness of every neighborhood in this City.

         13                 We don't want -- well, I don't want,

         14  I can speak for the Chairperson, the City to be

         15  Manhattancentric in the outer boroughs, or be

         16  sensitive to the needs of any part of this, any

         17  individual or any entity within this City when we're

         18  trying to deal with things that will affect us and

         19  our children.

         20                 And I would hope that whatever you

         21  do, you would keep that in mind. And I'm going to

         22  open this up to any other members that have

         23  questions at this point.

         24                 Nobody? Oh, okay, Council Member

         25  Clarke.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair. It is certainly pleasing to see that Mr.

          4  Eaddy has been submitted as a candidate for City

          5  Planning.

          6                 In a previous life I had an

          7  opportunity to work with Mr. Eaddy in the Borough of

          8  the Bronx, and I was quite impressed by his

          9  leadership at that time, the type of work that we

         10  were engaged in had a lot to do with the development

         11  and growth of that borough, and, so, I'm just saying

         12  this to say to my colleagues that Mr. Eaddy is quite

         13  capable of the role he is seeking to be appointed to

         14  today. He understands community, he understands the

         15  technicalities and the challenges that we face with

         16  respect to development in our City and so I just

         17  wanted to add that to the record today, that I have

         18  had some personal interactions with Mr. Eaddy and

         19  have found him to be quite professional.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

         22  Councilwoman.

         23                 I'm sorry, Councilman Avella had his

         24  hand up, I thought he was saying no, but he had some

         25  questions.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: That's all

          3  right.

          4                 A couple of quick questions. First of

          5  all, who has actually referred you as a candidate

          6  for the City Planning Commission?

          7                 MR. EADDY: The appointment, I got a

          8  call from the Commissioner, or the Chair of the

          9  Commission, asking if I would be interested.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: So, Amanda

         11  Burden, in effect --

         12                 MR. EADDY: It's a mayoral appointee.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: One of the

         14  things that has come up in the past in terms of

         15  zoning change applications, and actually there was

         16  one recently before my Committee, and it involved a

         17  situation where the Council member was concerned

         18  about the project, but about the project as it

         19  related to the surrounding area.

         20                 It's a large section of undeveloped

         21  land in Staten Island, and the Council Member was

         22  concerned that the application, he was reluctant to

         23  approve the application without commitment for the

         24  rest of the land.

         25                 Now, as it exists today, that's
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          2  outside the scope of an application when it comes

          3  before us and before City Planning; how do you feel

          4  about that? Do you think there should be something

          5  that allows City Planning Commission, the City

          6  Council, the community boards, to make

          7  recommendations that are outside the immediate scope

          8  of the project, but may deal directly or bear

          9  directly on the project in terms of neighboring

         10  properties?

         11                 MR. EADDY: I think that all the

         12  concerns from a community and elected official

         13  should be taken into consideration in the decision

         14  process of the Commission.

         15                 I believe that the process also

         16  allows for once an item comes, once it goes through

         17  the Commission, that it does go to the Council, as

         18  well, which then is able to take separate action. I

         19  think the impacts of a project need to be taken a

         20  look at in totality and in terms of impacts on the

         21  surrounding community, as well.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Hopefully a

         23  number of down zoning applications will be coming

         24  before the City Planning Commission.

         25                 You heard me mention, you were

                                                            33

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  sitting through as I mentioned to Commissioner Miele

          3  about the issue of community facilities, and how do

          4  you feel about how the zoning code protects

          5  residential communities in the City of New York as

          6  it exists today? What are your thoughts on that?

          7                 MR. EADDY: The zoning resolution

          8  requires continued updating to meet the needs of the

          9  City, and, you know, the community facilities

         10  portion of it is an area that I think there needs to

         11  be a balance. There needs to be the ability to have,

         12  for instance, as Joel mentioned, doctors' offices in

         13  close proximity to residences, but on the other

         14  hand, to look at the impacts of what has happened,

         15  as the zoning resolution currently allows the larger

         16  medical facilities, for instance.

         17                 So, I think that there needs to be

         18  ongoing reform, and I look forward to working with

         19  the Department and the Commission to see that that

         20  happens.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Councilman Oddo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman.
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          2                 Mr. Chairman, I actually have more of

          3  a statement or a request than an actual question.

          4                 But, Mr. Eaddy, welcome. And I'm just

          5  reviewing your file, I think you're going to make a

          6  fine addition to the Commission. I say to you and

          7  Ms. Phillips that I'm looking for allies, and I need

          8  friends, I need friends on the Commission and I'll

          9  tell you why. On Staten Island, the term that we've

         10  coined it, it's not a technical term, we call it

         11  overdevelopment. It's builders and developers

         12  building within the existing rules, not violating

         13  rules, following rules, but for my constituents or

         14  myself the rules seem to be outdated, and where

         15  one-family homes now stand, they're being replaced

         16  by multi-units of attached housing, and this

         17  manifests itself in incredible traffic problems,

         18  school overcrowding infrastructure that just can't

         19  withstand the growth. Staten Island is the

         20  fastest-growing county in the State, and that's not

         21  a good thing.

         22                 What we have decided in the Staten

         23  Island Delegation is that we need our own little

         24  dream team of sorts because we don't have, as much

         25  as we're trying to do a crash course with some
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          2  professional associations, we don't have the

          3  expertise to match the wits, frankly, of the

          4  developers and their hired guns. They could take a

          5  piece of property that you or I look at and say you

          6  really can't fit ten units on, and somehow they

          7  manage to fit ten units, and then those problems

          8  that get created then fall in our laps and we simply

          9  don't have the expertise to go and look at the

         10  zoning resolution and say, well, if we change this,

         11  this and this.

         12                 So, what we're doing is we're hoping

         13  to work, and I sent the letter to what hopefully

         14  will be your new colleague, the Chair of the CPC,

         15  and said help us, because we want to hire a

         16  professional to take an objective look at the zoning

         17  resolution vis-a-vis Staten Island, study it, look

         18  at Staten Island's problems and make tangible,

         19  concrete recommendations that can inject some sanity

         20  into a process that's completely out of control.

         21                 My rant is over, my request is when

         22  you or Ms. Phillips are on the Commission that you

         23  use your best offices to help convince your

         24  colleagues and the chair that a study, and I'll

         25  leave it to my other colleagues to represent the
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          2  interests of their communities, but certainly on

          3  Staten Island, we realize, we're putting our hands

          4  up in the air and saying, we're not expertise

          5  enough, we need to go out and hire people to do this

          6  study and saying this is what the problem is, this

          7  is what the problem is with the zoning resolution.

          8  They're playing by the rules, but the rules of the

          9  game are outdated.

         10                 So, this is a request that we made in

         11  writing a week ago, we'll be following up on it. I

         12  ask that if it comes across your desk when you're a

         13  member of this Committee that you support us and sit

         14  down with us and discuss this, and, again, help us

         15  have development, but have sound development that

         16  doesn't attack the integrity and character of a

         17  community.

         18                 Our borough is changing and it's not

         19  changing for the better.

         20                 I thank you for your time, and I

         21  thank you, Mr. Chairman, for allowing me to go on my

         22  Dennis Miller-like rant.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I appreciate your

         24  insight, and it's actually the same issue that I

         25  know Councilman Avella and most of us have in the
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          2  Council that communities are changing and we don't

          3  want to suffer from over-development where it hurts

          4  our history or hurts our communities or hurts the

          5  quality of our residential life.

          6                 I would ask you, Councilman, and also

          7  request that, and I'm sure that with especially the

          8  wonderful praise that you received from Council

          9  Member Clarke, that I'm sure that that will be part

         10  of your mission on CPC.

         11                 So, unless anyone else has any

         12  questions, we've been rejoined by Council Member Lou

         13  Fidler. I'd like to thank you for your attendance

         14  this morning, we'll be voting shortly.

         15                 MR. EADDY: Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you want to

         17  speak now or do you want to speak afterwards?

         18                 We haven't had so many speakers on

         19  candidates yet, so this is actually the second time.

         20  I wasn't sure when to slat you in, I wanted to make

         21  sure you were in, though.

         22                 MR. EADDY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do we need to

         24  swear in? No. Since you are only the second person,

         25  we were trying to figure out whether we should swear

                                                            38

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  you in.

          3                 MR. FERRER: In fact, Mr. Chairman, I

          4  don't mind taking the oath, it will merely

          5  underscore my testimony.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. Well, if

          7  you'd like to. Thank you.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

          9  swear or affirm that the testimony you're about to

         10  give us is the truth, the whole truth and nothing

         11  but the truth?

         12                 MR. FERRER: I do.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         14  your name and affiliation for the record.

         15                 MR. FERRER: My name is Fernando

         16  Ferrer, President of the Drum Major Institute,

         17  former President of the Borough of the Bronx, and

         18  former member of the Council and this Committee.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, good

         21  morning, and thank you for coming.

         22                 MR. FERRER: Good morning, Mr.

         23  Chairman, and thank you very much for the

         24  opportunity you extend me to speak on this

         25  nomination and members of the Committee.
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          2                 I've known Richard Eaddy for quite

          3  some years, by reputation and as a colleague. I

          4  appointed him as Deputy Borough President of the

          5  Bronx in January of 1998. I did so on the strength

          6  of his extraordinary professional and academic

          7  qualifications.

          8                 Having served on the design team and

          9  the management at the MTA, the restoration of Grand

         10  Central Terminal, as President of the Harlem

         11  Community Development Corporation, a successor

         12  organization of HUDC, on the Board of North General

         13  Hospital, with a special interest in the

         14  development, I would add the ground-breaking

         15  development of multi-family housing, new

         16  multi-family housing in Harlem, the Maples Projects,

         17  I believe he was the ideal candidate by virtue of

         18  his management experience, his planning background,

         19  to join an Administration that had a tradition of

         20  community-based planning already established.

         21                 He did not let me down. He handled

         22  extraordinarily complex projects, with a great deal

         23  of diligence and a great deal of competence,

         24  bringing them all home.

         25                 This is one of the finest public
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          2  servants I've not only ever met, but had the

          3  privilege to serve in government with. I want to

          4  congratulate Mayor Bloomberg for nominating him and

          5  recommend him to the Committee on Rules and the City

          6  Council.

          7                 You only know someone when you serve

          8  with them. I served with Richard Eaddy for some

          9  years in doing some of the most complex and

         10  difficult redevelopment work in a complex and

         11  challenging borough. I know him well, he is up to

         12  this job.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you for

         14  your comments, and thank you for taking the time to

         15  come down and visit with us this morning.

         16                 MR. FERRER: Thank you so much, Mr.

         17  Chairman. Always a pleasure.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: No questions. I

         19  didn't think there would be any after that

         20  statement.

         21                 The next candidate, Ms. Karen

         22  Phillips. Good morning. Would you raise your right

         23  hand and be sworn in, please.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

         25  swear or affirm that the testimony you're about to
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          2  give us is the truth, the whole truth and nothing

          3  but the truth?

          4                 MS. PHILLIPS: I do.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

          6  your name and affiliation for the record.

          7                 MS. PHILLIPS: The name is Karen A.

          8  Phillips, and I'm a candidate for City Planning

          9  Commissioner.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning, Ms.

         11  Phillips.

         12                 MS. PHILLIPS: Good morning.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

         14  opening statement?

         15                 MS. PHILLIPS: Well, I'd just like to

         16  add a few words. Basically I thank this Committee

         17  for hearing my nomination, and I thank the Public

         18  Advocate Betsy Gotbaum for her faith in me.

         19                 I am this month celebrating 20 years

         20  of being a resident of the City of New York, and

         21  since I've spent more time here now than I did in

         22  the home town Osala, Georgia, where I grew up, I

         23  feel that I am a New Yorker, and I'm committed and

         24  love this City.

         25                 My background and training is as a
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          2  landscape architect, but I've been exposed and

          3  studied planning, ecology, urban design,

          4  architecture, engineering, and later in graduate

          5  school, the real estate development process.

          6                 I have experience in the City with

          7  large scale planning, urban design, economic

          8  development and commercial revitalization, as a

          9  public service with the Port Authority of New York

         10  and New Jersey, and with New York State, then the

         11  Urban Development Corporation.

         12                 For the past 13 years, I've been

         13  employed and helped to found the Abyssinian

         14  Development Corporation, a Comprehensive Community

         15  Development Corporation in Harlem, whose goal is to

         16  create sustainable communities for economically

         17  distressed areas. And I am now in a transmission

         18  mode and will be leaving that position at the end of

         19  this month. But ADC has allowed me to use my skills

         20  and experience in rebuilding this community, and I

         21  feel that my role has been to use my professional

         22  skills to speak and to represent those who feel that

         23  they have no voice in affairs that affect their

         24  environment and their living conditions.

         25                 So, I look forward to utilizing my
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          2  various skills and experience with the Department of

          3  City Planning and working with my colleagues, many

          4  of whom I've worked with or associated with in

          5  various organizations that I've been a part of, or

          6  community building activities. So, I would

          7  appreciate your consideration of my candidacy.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you, Ms.

          9  Phillips.

         10                 I did look over your information and

         11  your background is exceptional, and I'm very

         12  appreciative of the fact that the Public Advocate

         13  has found you and has asked you to serve, and that

         14  you're willing to serve on the City Planning

         15  Commission. I think that, as you've already heard

         16  from the earlier statements, it's a very important

         17  body to the members and to the City in general, and

         18  I think it will be more than enhanced, their

         19  reputation will most definitely be heightened by

         20  your presence, and I hope that you can steer them

         21  and be a positive voice to make sure their

         22  communities are protected and the integrity of the

         23  City is maintained, while we're doing the necessary

         24  things to move forward in a new world.

         25                 Thank you. And is there any
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          2  questions?

          3                 Councilman Avella.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Just one quick

          5  question. And it's actually more of a statement. In

          6  terms of your response to the second question, what

          7  do you believe should be the City Planning

          8  Commission's top land use policy priority for the

          9  City at this time.

         10                 You mentioned all good things

         11  increase development sites for affordable housing,

         12  create a waterfront for the people, and appropriate

         13  changes in the zoning of areas that are economically

         14  distressed, to provide incentives for development,

         15  all worthy goals.

         16                 The only thing I would suggest, as

         17  Leroy just said, and as my colleagues have said and

         18  you've heard us say is, that one of the things that

         19  needs to be a top priority for City Planning is

         20  protecting residential communities from

         21  over-development. There are communities that need to

         22  be down-zoned, we need to do something about

         23  community facility section of the zoning code, and I

         24  just ask you to include that in your top priority.

         25                 MS. PHILLIPS: Okay. Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Councilwoman

          4  Clarke.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chair.

          7                 While I haven't had direct work

          8  experience with Ms. Phillips, her reputation

          9  certainly precedes her. The work that she has done

         10  uptown in terms of development, both through

         11  economic development and community development

         12  strategies has been touted as sort of a model for

         13  development for many communities around the City of

         14  New York, I think that that uniquely qualifies her

         15  when we look at some of the concerns that we have

         16  had about the City's Planning Commission and their

         17  unresponsiveness to public officials, Miss Phillips

         18  has really been one of those bridges through which

         19  community, as well as elected officials and

         20  government have been able to do some really creative

         21  development here in the City of New York, and, so,

         22  I'm urging my colleagues at this time to give her

         23  your most favorable consideration. I'm also proud to

         24  see that we have a black woman who is being

         25  suggested as a candidate. I think that bringing that

                                                            46

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  diversity to the body is quite remarkable and much

          3  needed.

          4                 So, I want to thank you, Mr. Chair,

          5  for giving me this opportunity and again urge my

          6  colleagues to give her your most favorable

          7  consideration.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

          9  Council member.

         10                 Any other questions?

         11                 Ms. Phillips, thank you. And I would

         12  like to say welcome aboard. We're going to vote

         13  soon, but I'm pretty sure which way we're going. I'm

         14  not trying to steer anybody, but...

         15                 At this point I'd like to vote,

         16  unless there are any other comments from any other

         17  members, we're going to call people back in, and the

         18  vote will be held open because there are members

         19  downstairs at meetings and at other places, but I'd

         20  like to vote on all three candidates at the same

         21  time, if there be no objections. Then I'd like to

         22  have the vote called.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.
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          2                 (No response.)

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Sorry I

          5  made everybody wait. I'd like to explain my vote, if

          6  I may.

          7                 I'm sorry I didn't hear the testimony

          8  on our last witness, but I'm sure that you are very

          9  well qualified, and although I don't know you, I do

         10  know the others. I know Richard Eaddy, who was our

         11  Deputy Borough President for a few years, and, of

         12  course, Joel Miele, so I'm very happy to vote yes on

         13  all three.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I'd like to be

         16  excused to explain my vote.

         17                 First and foremost, I want to welcome

         18  you all aboard to your respective commissions and

         19  state that we have full faith and confidence that

         20  you will represent your commission with integrity

         21  and dedication that we know you will, and I would

         22  like to vote yes on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Avella.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: It's my

         25  pleasure to vote aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         12  very much.

         13                 I want to take a moment to explain my

         14  vote.

         15                 First I want to share my outstanding

         16  appreciation for two of the candidates that I've had

         17  the privilege of working with and who actually are

         18  my neighbors, and that's Karen Phillips and Richard

         19  Eaddy, and I want to unanimously vote aye on them

         20  and abstain on the other.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes on all. And

         24  I'll just say to Mr. Eaddy and Ms. Phillips, please

         25  remember this loving face of mine when I come before
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          2  you and beg for your help on overdevelopment. Thank

          3  you.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: As of now the vote

          5  stands at ten in the affirmative, zero in the

          6  negative, no abstentions, with the exception of M

          7  177, which stands at a vote of nine in the

          8  affirmative, zero in the negative and one

          9  abstention.

         10                 All items are adopted. Please sign

         11  the Committee report and the vote remains open.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Members, don't

         13  forget to turn back the red books. They are

         14  confidential, as they're pertaining to the

         15  candidates' personal history.

         16                 We want to congratulate the

         17  candidates. The vote will be held open for those

         18  members of the Committee that are in other parts of

         19  the building at the moment. And I want to thank the

         20  staff, Mr. Davis, and Stewart, for doing their

         21  excellent job as usual. And Chuck.

         22                 The Finance Committee is going to be

         23  held right now in the Committee Room.

         24                 Please don't forget to sign the

         25  report, members. Thank you.
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          2                 (The following written testimony was

          3  read into the record.)

          4

          5

          6  Written Testimony Of:

          7  Riverkeeper

          8

          9  June 24, 2002

         10

         11  To Members of the New York City Council:

         12

         13                 My name is Robert F. Kennedy, Jr.,

         14  and I am the Chief Prosecuting Attorney for

         15  Riverkeeper, Inc. I submit this written testimony in

         16  opposition to Joel Miele's potential appointment to

         17  the New York City Board of Standards and Appeals

         18  (BSA). For approximately seven years, Joel Miele was

         19  the Commissioner of the New York City Department of

         20  Environmental Protection (DEP) - the agency charged

         21  with protecting New York City's unfiltered drinking

         22  water supply.

         23                 During Miele's tenure, mismanagement,

         24  corruption, and illegal activities plagued the

         25  Agency. Due to my involvement in New York City
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          2  watershed issues, I have intimate knowledge of

          3  inappropriate activities carried out under Miele's

          4  tenure. Based on these activities, I believe that

          5  Miele's appointment to the BSA would be a gross

          6  betrayal of the public's trust in good government.

          7                 The following sections of my

          8  testimony provide details of inappropriate

          9  activities conducted by Joel Miele and by DEP under

         10  Miele's administration. For your reference,

         11  supporting documents are attached.

         12                 Environmental Crimes. On August 29,

         13  2001, Commissioner Miele and DEP pleaded guilty to a

         14  felony violation of the Clean Water Act and to a

         15  misdemeanor violation of the Toxic Substances

         16  Control Act for mishandling mercury and PCBs in the

         17  New York City Watershed.

         18                 The felony guilty plea was an

         19  admission that DEP, under Commissioner Miele's

         20  leadership, knowingly discharged mercury into the

         21  New York City drinking water supply. At the

         22  sentencing hearing, Federal Judge Barrington Parker

         23  refused to accept the guilty plea from DEP lawyers

         24  and adjourned court for three hours so that

         25  Commissioner Miele could be brought from Queens to
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          2  the White Plains courthouse, as a way of indicating

          3  Mr. Miele's personal responsibility for corruption

          4  in the Agency.

          5                 As little as a teaspoon of mercury

          6  will contaminate a 1750-acre reservoir to the point

          7  that the fish in that reservoir are unsafe to eat.

          8  Humans exposed to mercury, or who eat contaminated

          9  fish, can suffer chronic mercury poisoning, which

         10  causes a wide variety of debilitating conditions

         11  that are often misdiagnosed because of the symptoms

         12  mimic recognized disease.

         13                 The agency's guilty plea also

         14  indicates a strong reluctance to face additional

         15  criminal charges in a court of law. These felony and

         16  misdemeanor pleas are the culmination of a

         17  three-year Federal Bureau of Investigation and U.S.

         18  Attorney's Office investigation into DEP

         19  misfeasance. As part of the plea, DEP was fined

         20  $50,000, was forced to hire an outside monitor to

         21  oversee the Agency's water supply efforts for three

         22  years, and was placed on a three- to five-year

         23  prison term of probation. Equally egregious is the

         24  fact that while DEP was mishandling toxic

         25  substances, DEP employees were exposed to the toxics
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          2  without warning or adequate safety equipment. These

          3  illegal activities, conducted during Miele's tenure,

          4  jeopardized the health and safety of DEP employees

          5  and nine million New Yorkers.

          6                 In a letter to the Judge Parker in

          7  support of the plea agreement, the U.S. Attorney's

          8  Office highlighted the severe problems existing at

          9  DEP under Miele's tenure. Among the many conclusions

         10  in that report:

         11                 - "The investigation... has revealed

         12  longstanding, systemic problems within DEP, which

         13  gave rise to the violation and warrant the

         14  agreed-upon oversight by a court-appointed

         15  monitor... that a local environmental agency [DEP]

         16  Has violated federal environmental laws as a result,

         17  largely, of a culture that failed to place a

         18  priority on those laws, failed to educate its

         19  employees about those laws, and failed to make the

         20  capital improvements necessary to ensure compliance

         21  with those laws." Page 2

         22                 - "The crimes charged in the

         23  Information are not isolated or aberrant acts. To

         24  the contrary, they reflect a longstanding culture

         25  among officials... at DEP, which, as an entity, has
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          2  failed for decades to deal properly with hazardous

          3  material in the water supply system and has

          4  demonstrated both its blindness to at least some of

          5  its obligations under the federal environmental laws

          6  and its inability, or unwillingness, to take the

          7  steps necessary to ensure compliance with those

          8  federal environmental obligations it has

          9  recognized." Page 9

         10                 -"It was only rarely that DEP

         11  employees came forward voluntarily, on their own

         12  initiative, to provide information, despite

         13  awareness of the investigation and of problems at

         14  DEP. Yet this lack of initiative was due at least in

         15  part to an atmosphere of fear and intimidation at

         16  DEP which caused some employees to fear retribution

         17  if they cooperated in this investigation." Page 17

         18                 -"[T]he institutional commitment

         19  necessary to bring DEP into compliance with its

         20  legal requirements quickly is lacking: DEP has

         21  failed to provide adequate resources to address its

         22  environmental infractions aggressively, quickly and

         23  across the board." Page 17

         24                 -"Were it not for the pendency of the

         25  criminal investigation and the knowledge of
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          2  information learned as a result by the Government,

          3  the spilled mercury... might well be there still.

          4  This is the kind of situation that should be

          5  promptly and decisively addressed by DEP on its own

          6  initiative. At present, there is no level of

          7  confidence that DEP would so respond." Page 18

          8                 - "All of the incidents, and others

          9  not mentioned here, make it clear that the culture

         10  at DEP... has not changed...Moreover...DEP continues

         11  to move slowly." Page 19

         12                 - "DEP is an agency in need of a

         13  cultural reformation." Page 19

         14                 (More information about the guilty

         15  plea can be found in the attached U.S. Attorney's

         16  Office report and news articles. (Attachment #1).

         17                 In addition to jeopardizing health

         18  and safety, Miele allegedly made false statements

         19  about the investigation. For example, during an

         20  April 5, 2000 deposition conducted as part of a

         21  lawsuit brought by DEP Police Captain Ron Gatto,

         22  Commissioner Miele answered "no" when asked whether

         23  he was aware of an FBI investigation of the DEP

         24  Bureau of Water Supply. (transcript summary attached

         25  (Attachment #2). The FBI in fact, had raided the
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          2  offices of DEP and Bureau of Water Supply staff on

          3  June 15, 1999, an incident which was widely

          4  reported. (newspaper reports attached (Attachment

          5  #2). It is beyond credibility to believe that

          6  Commissioner Miele could have remained ignorant of

          7  this investigation.

          8                 False Statements - Delaware Aqueduct.

          9                 For Approximately six years,

         10  Commissioner Miele and his staff ignored a

         11  catastrophic leak in the Delaware Aqueduct - as the

         12  leak increased and jeopardized the City's water

         13  supply.

         14                 The leak was covered up by the

         15  Commissioner and his staff and only admitted

         16  publicly after a Riverkeeper investigation forced

         17  DEP to disclose information about the crisis.

         18                 At that time, the Commissioner

         19  continued to lie about DEP's conduct and his own

         20  efforts to solve the problem.

         21                 On July 21, 2000, DEP Commissioner

         22  Joel Miele testified before the U.S. District Court,

         23  Southern District of New York in the trial of an

         24  action brought against former DEP police director

         25  Michael Collins. Mr. Collins claimed, among other
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          2  things, to have been improperly demoted because of

          3  his efforts to bring mayoral and public attention to

          4  the Delaware aqueduct leak. Responding to a question

          5  by Collins' attorney, Commissioner Miele testified,

          6  under oath, that DEP had signed a contract with

          7  Woods Hole Oceanographic Institute to construct a

          8  submarine to investigate the leak. See 98 Civ.7806

          9  (CM) (Gay), transcript at 139-140 (Attachment #3).

         10                 Commissioner Miele subsequently

         11  repeated this statement in an October 2, 2000 DEP

         12  press release that coincided with DEP's release of

         13  documents relevant to the leak in response to a

         14  Riverkeeper Freedom of Information Law request.

         15  (Attachment #3) In each instance, the Commissioner,

         16  or a member of his staff, clearly affirmed that a

         17  submersible "is now being built for DEP by Woods

         18  Hole Oceanographic Institute."

         19                 The Commissioner and his staff

         20  further repeated their representations in interviews

         21  with New York Newsday, November 4, 2000, page A3 and

         22  the New York Post, November 4, 2000, page 9.

         23  (Attachment #3). In each instance, the Commissioner

         24  or his staff claimed that the Department had awarded

         25  a contract to Woods Hole, and that the submersible
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          2  was already under construction.

          3                 All of these statements were, in

          4  fact, false. As of the date that each was made, no

          5  contract existed for construction of the submarine.

          6  Only increased public and New York City Council

          7  pressure eventually forced the Agency to procure the

          8  contract. According to a Riverkeeper phone

          9  conversation with Sherry Luzanne, Director of Media

         10  Relations for Woods Hole, the Institute had

         11  responded in 1998 or 1999 to a Request for Proposals

         12  by DEP for the construction of a submarine. However,

         13  Woods Hole had no further communication from DEP

         14  regarding the proposed submersible until December

         15  2000 following a deluge of news reports questioning

         16  the Commissioner's earlier statements. (news report

         17  attached (Attachment #3).

         18                 Section 1116(b) of the New York City

         19  Charter provides that "[a]ny officer or employee of

         20  the city or of any city agency who shall knowingly

         21  make a false or deceptive report or statement in the

         22  course of duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and,

         23  upon conviction, forfeit such office or employment."

         24                 Clearly, Commissioner Miele made

         25  "false statements" within the meaning of the
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          2  statute. The statements were made "in the course" of

          3  his duties as the Commissioner of the Department of

          4  Environmental Protection, the New York City agency

          5  charged with delivering safe, potable water to the

          6  city's residents and visitors. Overseeing the

          7  security and repair of the water delivery

          8  infrastructure and representing its condition to the

          9  public are manifestly within the course of the

         10  Commissioner's duties. It is apparent that the

         11  Commissioner made the statements regarding the

         12  submersible contract knowing them to be false.

         13                 Commissioner Miele's false statements

         14  disguised the fact that, for six years under his

         15  leadership, DEP had done virtually nothing to remedy

         16  a substantial and growing leak in the City's most

         17  important aqueduct. Miele's failure to respond

         18  affirmatively to this crisis was a central claim in

         19  the Michael Collins lawsuit; Collins argued that he

         20  had been demoted to discourage him from embarrassing

         21  DEP with his public disclosure of the department's

         22  failure to respond t o the Delaware Aqueduct leak.

         23  Mr. Miele's statement under oath helped to discredit

         24  Collins' charge. Commissioner Miele's subsequent

         25  statements were each in response to public
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          2  accusations that DEP was not responding to a serious

          3  infrastructure problem. In each instance, Mr. Miele

          4  was seeking to reassure the public that his agency

          5  had taken measures to protect New York City's supply

          6  of water. Because these were important public

          7  concerns central to his job performance, it is

          8  unlikely that the statements were made lightly

          9  without Miele knowing they were false.

         10                 Steep Slopes Development.

         11                 During his tenure, Miele also oversaw

         12  a series of decisions to weaken water supply

         13  protection. A prime example of Miele's willingness

         14  to put the priorities of the upstate real estate

         15  lobby ahead of DEP's own duties as watershed

         16  advocate is the 1998 action to open steep slopes in

         17  the  City watershed to new development despite state

         18  regulation that forbade it. Appendix 75-A of the

         19  Public Health Regulations forbids construction of

         20  septic systems on slopes that are steeper than 15

         21  percent in order to safeguard against septic system

         22  failures and to protect water quality. On September

         23  14, 1998, via an e-mail message sent to various

         24  employees of the Department, Ed Polese, P.E., Chief

         25  of DEP's Engineering Section, reversed this rule,
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          2  determining that compliance with 10 N.Y.C.R.R. 75-A

          3  was not required, and in effect issued a new rule

          4  with respect to the construction of new septic

          5  systems on slopes in excess of 15 percent. Polese's

          6  brief message read as follows: "As of September 10,

          7  1998 slopes that are greater than 15 percent but

          8  less than 20 percent may be modified to 15 percent

          9  or flatter to meet the requirements of 75A.

         10  Modification to be accomplished by fill only."

         11                 The text of this new rule issued by

         12  Polese and the Department of Environmental

         13  Protection, which applies across the

         14  1,900-square-mile watershed area, was never

         15  published in the City Record. Members of the public

         16  were given no opportunity to comment upon the

         17  proposed rule. Furthermore, the Department failed to

         18  conduct even the most rudimentary review of the

         19  environmental impacts associated with the new rule.

         20  It was, quite simply, an e-mail edict, followed by a

         21  memorandum. Riverkeeper was among a large coalition

         22  of environmental groups that successfully sued Miele

         23  to get him to reverse the rule which was nothing

         24  more than a gift to upstate developers. Until a

         25  state judge overturned the Miele rule in 2000,
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          2  Putnam County's Planning Office estimated that 25

          3  percent of all new housing starts were taking

          4  advantage of DEP's loophole. As the agency charged

          5  with protecting the water supply, DEP opened to

          6  development thousands of acres of previously

          7  protected land.

          8                 Wetlands Protection.

          9                 In another example of a

         10  developer-friendly decision that jeopardized water

         11  consumers, in February 1999, Commissioner Miele

         12  withdrew a series of recommendations made by Deputy

         13  Commissioner Dr. William Stasiuk to the U.S. Army

         14  Corps of Engineers which would have strengthened

         15  protection of watershed wetlands.

         16                 Commissioner Miele's retreat from

         17  strong wetland protection was in direct response to

         18  political influence exerted by an upstate state

         19  senator.

         20                 The watershed includes 27,968 acres

         21  of wetlands. Their preservation is essential to

         22  maintaining the exceptional water quality New York

         23  City enjoys without filtration. Wetlands, including

         24  smaller, isolated wetlands, play a critical role in

         25  water purification and flood prevention. They
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          2  recharge the aquifers that feed the purest waters to

          3  our reservoirs and maintain stream flows during

          4  drought.

          5                 Wetlands act as natural filtration

          6  systems by trapping construction runoff, sediments,

          7  pesticides, road salts, toxic motor fluids and

          8  nutrients such as phosphorus and nitrogen. They also

          9  provide important wildlife habitat and serve flood

         10  control functions that are critical to protecting

         11  quality of life and property in the

         12  1,900-square-mile watershed.

         13                 On August 21, 1998 and December 18,

         14  1998, Deputy Commissioner Stasiuk made the sensible

         15  request that the Corps increase wetlands protection

         16  in the watershed. When New York State Senator John

         17  J. Bonacic learned of Stasiuk's letter, he called

         18  City Hall to insist that the City withdraw its

         19  comments to the Corps.

         20                 In a stunning turnaround,

         21  Commissioner Miele wrote to the Corps of Engineers

         22  on February 5, 1999, withdrawing the City's request

         23  for strong wetlands protection and publicly

         24  excoriating Dr. Stasiuk, stating that "the comments

         25  you received have not been reviewed, accepted and/or
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          2  approved by my office and are therefore unofficial."

          3                 Conclusion.

          4                 Based on the information above, I

          5  respectfully request that you deny Mr. Miele's

          6  appointment to the BSA. It is unconscionable that a

          7  former government official who pleaded guilty to

          8  knowingly discharging toxic chemicals into the

          9  public's water supply could be appointed to another

         10  government position.

         11                 Mr. Miele has repeatedly betrayed the

         12  public trust with false statements. The City

         13  Charter's requirement that public officials be

         14  honest in their communications with the public is a

         15  standard of which New Yorkers should be proud, as it

         16  is part of a package of reforms that divorced New

         17  York City from a past marked by open political

         18  corruption.

         19                 This code of conduct represents a

         20  tradition of reform that distinguishes New York from

         21  other American municipalities by its commitment to

         22  expect the strictest codes of conduct in our

         23  political officials.

         24                 With this testimony, I respectfully

         25  request that you uphold the public trust and deny
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          2  Mr. Miele's appointment to the BSA.

          3                 Respectfully submitted, Robert F.

          4  Kennedy, Jr., Chief Prosecuting Attorney.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 11:45 a.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 26th day of June 2002.

         20
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         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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